
Chelan County 
Department of Community Development 

316 Washington Street, Suite 301, Wenatchee, WA 98801 
        Telephone: (509) 667-6225 Fax: (509) 667-6475 

 

    

  
 
 
January 15, 2021 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jim Brown, Director 
 
SUBJECT:  PACKET—CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT LIST: 

REVIEW, HEARING, DELIBERATION, AND DECISION 
 
This packet of materials contains: 
 
Exhibits (3): 
 
A:  PC Agenda for January 27, 2021 meeting:  

• Hearing for CPA 20-009 CIP Text Amendment 

B:  Draft Minutes from the December 16, 2020 meeting 
 
C:  Staff report and supporting documents for CPA 20-009 
 
NOTE: Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer will be the staff presenter at the hearing.  Also, you 
will now have a new Planning Commissioner, Doug England, for this meeting.  And so, you are 
now fully constituted again as a commission. 



 
Exhibit A 



 

Chelan County Planning Commission 
Chair: Ryan Kelso Vice Chair: Carl Blum 

Commissioners District 1: Vicki Malloy, Ryan Kelso, Will Wiggs 
Commissioners District 2: Jim Newberry, Ed Martinez, Joel Walinski 

Commissioners District 3: Carl Blum, Pat Hammersmith, Doug England 
 
Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, January 27, 2021 at 6:00 P.M.  
Chelan County Community Development 
 

In response to the Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, the Planning Commission will hold all of 
their Regular and Special Meetings via Zoom Video Conference until further notice. Click 
the link below to join the meeting, beginning at 6:00 pm on November 18, 2020. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87824857234?pwd=Y1ljbDRQQWdLTHFDVC84MGRDaHluUT09  
Meeting ID: 878 2485 7234 
Passcode: 010146 
 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

I. Administrative 
 

A. Elect Chair and Vice Chair 
B. Review/Approval of Minutes from December 16, 2020 

 
II. Public Comment Period 

Comment for any matters not identified on the agenda (limit 2 minutes per 
person) 

 
III. Old Business 

 
 

IV. New Business 
 
A. Hearing for CPA 20-009 CIP Text Amendment 
 

V. Discussion, at the Chair’s discretion 
 

VI. Adjournment *Meeting will go no longer than 8:00 PM.* 
 
Materials available on the Community Development website 

 
 

 
Any person may join this meeting via Zoom Video conference, of which the link is provided on 
the Chelan County Website. A Copy of the Agenda may be reviewed online 
https://www.co.chelan.wa.us/community-development/pages/planning-commission or 

https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/proclamations/20-28%20-%20COVID-19%20Open%20Govt%20Laws%20Waivers%20%28tmp%29.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87824857234?pwd=Y1ljbDRQQWdLTHFDVC84MGRDaHluUT09
https://www.co.chelan.wa.us/community-development/pages/planning-commission


requesting it by email at CD.Director@co.chelan.wa.us  
 
Chelan County has been recording Planning Commission meetings which will continue to be 
accessible on the Community Development Planning Commission web page shortly after the 
meeting takes place. If you need special accommodations to view the meetings while they take 
place, please contact us immediately at 509-667-6225 to set up a place for you to do so on the 
County Campus. Keep in mind you would be required to were personal protective equipment and 
maintain social distancing guide lines at all times. 

 
 

Next Regular Meeting 
February 24, 2021 at 6:00 pm via Zoom 

 
* All P lanning Commission meetings and hearings are open to the public. 

mailto:CD.Director@co.chelan.wa.us


 
Exhibit B 



 

CHELAN COUNTY 
  PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
 

Chelan County Planning Commission     Date: December 16, 2020 
Chelan County Community Development VIA ZOOM    
Called to Order: 6:01 PM 
316 Washington St., Suite 301  
Wenatchee, WA 98801 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 6:01 pm. 
 

COMMISSIONER PRESENT/ABSENT 
Ryan Kelso  Present   Carl Blum   Present 
Vicki Malloy      Present   Jim Newberry               Present 
Pat Hammersmith Present                           Ed Martinez                 Present   
James Wiggs  Present   Joel Walinski                Present   
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Jim Brown, Director 
Catherine Lorbeer, Assistant Director 
Wendy Lane, Permit Clerk  
 
PUBLIC PRESENT 
ZOOM MEETING – 24 PARTICIPANTS INCLUDING STAFF AND PC MEMBERS 
Chairman Ryan Kelso asked the Planning Commission members if all had read the minutes from the 
October 28, 2020, meeting. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Joel Walinski, second by Commissioner Jim Newberry, to approve the 
minutes from the November 18, 2020, meeting. 

Vote – Unanimous 

Motion carries. 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

None 

 



 

Commissioner Ed Martinez wanted make a point of personal privilege. He stated that when decisions are 
made in the Planning Commission, they are validating goals, the GMA, and the Comprehensive Plan 
and that is the purpose.  Continuing to override the Community Development staff, who have already 
investigated GMA decisions, doesn’t do anyone any good.  He stated that it degrades the value of the 
Planning Commission with the community, causes unnecessary litigation beyond, and may, in time, 
cause our County to default with the state.  He used the example of Resolution 2020-31, Riverstone 
Ranch, and how it was overridden by the Planning Commission and passed by the County 
Commissioners, only to be taken to court and it was found not to follow the GMA.  He asked that future 
decisions be based on the fourteen goals laid out by the Comprehensive Plan and use reasonable and 
repeatable logic. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

       Hearing for CPA 20-005 Joya   

Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer explained the application.  Staff recommends denial. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the hearing for public testimony.  

Ryan Walker presented the application on behalf of the applicant.  He gave a presentation on why he 
believed the application should be approved. Several Commissioners made statements and had questions 
for Mr. Walker, which he addressed.  During the exchange, Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer 
contributed to the conversation and issued a point of clarification. 

Sheryl Carson spoke to the Commissioners on behalf of Karen Carson, who submitted a public comment 
with regard to the application.  She is opposed to the application and stated reasons why.  Jake Carson 
also spoke on how the zone change would impact a neighboring property and the ability to farm it.  
There was a dispute on whether or not the property was previously used as an agriculture property or 
open space. 

Ryan Walker countered comments made by the Commissioners and the public. He reinforced his 
position on the number of lots that would be created due to the constraints of development. 

Rudy and Bethany Joya spoke on behalf of their application.  They spoke on the history of the property 
and what they would like to do with it in the future. 

Sheryl Carson spoke again about trusting the process with this application and reiterated her concern on 
the number of lots to be developed as a result of a favorable decision. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso closed the public portion of the meeting for CPA 20-005 Joya. 

Commissioner Ed Martinez spoke on adhering the staff recommendation and asked that any Planning 
Commission member who would go against it to explain their rational so he can understand it and agree 
in the future.  Commissioner Vicki Malloy also agrees, for the most part, with the recommendation in 



 

agreeing with staff on individual applications. She then gave examples on where and when the Planning 
Commissioners might choose a different outcome for an application.  Commissioner Jim Newberry gave 
his input on zoning matters and keeping the boundaries reasonable and consistent.   

There was a discussion among the Commissioners about the type of zone change requested and the 
number of lots to be created as a result of approval of the application. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Carl Blum, second by Commissioner James Wiggs, to deny CPA 20-
005 Joya. 

Vote – Commissioners Blum, Wiggs, Malloy, Martinez, Walinski, Hammersmith approve; 
Commissioners Newberry and Kelso oppose. 

Motion carries. 

     Hearing for CPA 20-007 SSRT Text Amendment 

Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer explained the application.  Staff recommends three options to consider with 
regard to the application. 

 Option 1:  Move to recommend denial of the Text Amendment to change Chapter 4 

 Option 2:  Move to recommend approval of Text Amendment to change Chapter 3 

Option 3:  Move to recommend denial of the Text Amendment to change Chapter 3 and Chapter 4, and                    
direct Staff to conduct additional research on Type 1 and Type 2 LAMIRDs 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the floor for the Commissioners to ask questions about the application.  Questions 
were asked and answered about the application and how it came to be.  The history behind the application was 
explained by Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer and the logic used to select the best method to move forward.  
She also gave examples on what would be allowed if the language was indeed changed.   

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the hearing for public testimony.   

Dwight Hume spoke on benefit of changing the language for the text amendment.  He gave background on how 
he concluded that such a change was needed.  He also explained the difference between Option 1 and Option 2.  
He would like Option 2 approved. 

The Commissioners spoke among themselves with regard to agriculture lands.  There was a back and forth with 
Mr. Hume that included questions and answers concerning new developments.  The group also discussed the pros 
and cons for Option 1 and Option 2.  It was also discussed adding an Option 4, to approve adding new 
development of SSRTs under Commercial Ag, to the list of options.   



 

Raye Evans strongly urged the Commissioners to prohibit Small Scale Recreational Tourist uses in area currently 
zoned as commercial ag lands.  She went on to explain why she believed the zoned area should remain as is.  She 
is concerned that her ag property will be devalued as a result of the Text Amendment. 

Natalie Kuehler spoke to the Commissioners on why SSRTs should not be allowed on commercial ag lands.  She 
continued to explain her position on the issue using the definitions found in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 14.  
She also referenced Chapter 11 in her statements.  She concluded by stating that agriculturally zoned areas are 
truly important to the area and there is a reason why the Code spends so much time defining and protecting them. 

Taudd Hume spoke in support of Dwight Hume’s comments.  He believes that flexibility should be built into and 
to reconcile the Code.  He continued by stating that it is in the discretion of the Planning Commission, and 
ultimately with the County Commissioners, to make the legislative change here to reconcile these two provisions 
and provide some flexibility. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso closed the public portion of the meeting for CPA 20-007 SSRT Text Amendment. 

Commissioner Carl Blum asked Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer to display the Options again for review.  
There was discussion among the Commissioners on which one(s) to pursue.   

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Carl Blum, second by Commissioner Ed Martinez, to approve (Option 
2) of the Text Amendment to change Chapter 3. 

Vote – unanimous 

Motion carries. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Joel Walinski, second by Commissioner Carl Blum, to deny (Option 1) of the 
Text Amendment to change Chapter 4. 

Vote – Commissioners Walinski, Blum, Malloy, Martinez, Wiggs, Hammersmith, Kelso approve; Commissioner 
Newberry opposes. 

Motion carries. 
 
DISCUSSION, at the CHAIR’s DISCRETION: 
 
Chairman Ryan Kelso inquired about the filling of the ninth position on the Planning Commission 
Board.  Director Jim Brown stated that the position was being held open until the new Chelan County 
Commissioner, Tiffany Gehring, is seated. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 



 

 
     Proposed Planning Commission schedule for 2021 
 
Director Jim Brown presented the proposed 2021 Planning Commission schedule with the months of 
November and December augmented, with an administrative move, to avoid the holidays, by moving the 
meetings up by the prior week. 
 
MOTION: 
Motion made by Commissioner Carl Vicki Malloy, second by Commissioner Jim Newberry, to approve 
the proposed Planning Commission schedule for 2021. 
 
Vote – unanimous 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Commissioner Carl Blum expressed appreciation to staff for getting the packet out well ahead of time 
and also a thank you to Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer with the bookmarks that were requested for 
large documents. 
 
Commissioner Vicki Malloy wanted to thank all for the hard work and expressed a Merry Christmas to 
everyone.  Other Commissioners issued greetings as well. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTON:  
 
Motion made by Commissioner Jim Newberry, seconded by Commissioner Carl Blum, to adjourn the 
meeting. 
 
Vote – unanimous 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:10 pm. 
 
Next Planning Commission Meeting to be held on January 27, 2021, at 6:00 pm, – a Zoom meeting. 
 

All Planning Commission meetings and hearings are open to the public. 



 
Exhibit C 



   

CPA 20-009 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Chelan County Planning Commission 

FROM: Chelan County Community Development 

HEARING DATE: January 27, 2021 

FILE NUMBER: CPA 20-009, Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Text Amend 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION 

The Chelan County Planning Commission may make a motion to recommend approval or denial of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Chelan County Board of County Commissioners, 
pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050.  Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 
which may be modified, are included in this staff report.  Staff recommends: 
 
A. Move to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to update the Six Year Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) for years 2021-2026, given file number CPA 20-009, based upon the findings 
of fact and conclusions of law contained within the January 27, 2021 staff report. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Planning Commission Notice of Hearing 
Published January 9, 2021 

Planning Commission Hearing on January 27, 2021 

60-day State agency review Received January 7, 2021 with comment period 
ending March 8, 2021 

SEPA Environmental Review 

Pursuant to WAC 197-11 and RCW 43.21C of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), environmental 
review and a threshold determination was completed, and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was 
issued on January 7, 2021.  
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION – CPA 20-009 – CIP TEXT AMENDMENT 

Proposal: Chelan County has initiated a Comprehensive Plan text amendment to the Capital Facilities 
Element to update the Six Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for years 2021-2026.  The CIP describes 
public capital expenditures, including the sources of funding for these items.  The goal of the CIP is to 
ensure that all capital improvement expenses have adequate funding.   
 
The proposed text amendments address changes in timing and cost for projects.  The County’s 
Administrator, Cathy Mulhall, has reviewed the projects and determined that project costs can be covered 
through various funding sources noted on the CIP spreadsheet.  Specifically, 2020 projects were moved 
into future years when they were either not completed or were determined not to be a priority.  Completed 
projects have been removed.  Updates to the Cashmere Dryden Airport Layout Plan to comply with WSDOT 
and FAA funding and regulations precipitated changes to the CIP as well. 
 
The Capital Facilities Element is a mandatory element of the Comprehensive Plan and estimates capital 
facility needs for the next 20 years.  The CIP is required by the Growth Management Act RCW 

Chelan County 

Department of Community Development 

 
 

2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment 
Staff Report 

 

  



   

CPA 20-009 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 2 of 4 

36.70A.070(3)(d) and promotes efficiency by prioritizing capital improvements for a longer period of time 
than the single budget year.  The CIP contains the six-year plan to finance capital projects based on 
projected funding.  
 
Please refer to Attachment 2 File of Record for the proposed text additions and other background 
information. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

The Comprehensive Plan represents the long-term vision for future land uses and development.  For the 
county-initiated text amendments, the merits of the requested change must be demonstrated as being 
consistent with adopted goals and policies.   
 
The following Comprehensive Plan policies are relevant to the proposed request for CPA 20-009: 
 
CF 1.2: Ensure that any available public services and facilities are adequately planned and designed to 

protect the public health, safety and welfare. 
 
CF 2.3: Size capital facilities to meet anticipated growth in the service area. 
 
CF 3.1: Provide and maintain a six-year plan that will finance needed capital facilities within projected 

funding capacities and which identifies funding sources for such purposes. 
 
CF 3.2 Where appropriate, employ innovative financing strategies for capital improvements, to minimize 

financial costs to taxpayers and equitably assign costs between existing and new development. 
 
CF 3.5: Capital facilities planning should establish shared funding responsibilities among and between local 

governments, utility purveyors, special purpose districts and the private sector. 
 
ED 6.5: Support economic development by providing adequate levels of infrastructure and promoting 

technological advancements in public service and facility systems. 
 

REVIEW CRITERIA 

The text amendment was analyzed based on information provided as background or when readily available, 
within existing County resources. Agency and public comment also play a role in understanding how the 
amendment may advance the Comprehensive Plan goals and policies and how it may serve the general 
public’s interest.   
 
Pursuant to Chelan County Code (CCC) Section 14.14.047, the following general review criteria were used 
to evaluate the proposed text amendment.  
 
1. The proposal is necessary to address a public land use issue or problem; and  
 

Finding of Fact: Inadequate public services and facilities may pose a risk to the public. The proposed 
amendments are necessary to address public needs related to capital improvements, pursuant to RCW 
36.70A.130(2)(b).  
 
Conclusion: The proposed text amendment will update the list of capital projects and expenditures, 
including the sources of funding so the County may responsibly spend funds and follow state law.  

 
2. The proposed amendment is consistent with the requirements of the Washington State Growth 

Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW as amended) and any applicable county-wide planning 
policies; and  

 
Finding of Fact:  The Growth Management Act requires local jurisdictions planning under the act to 
provide a six-year financing plan that identifies sources of funding for needed capital facilities. RCW 



   

CPA 20-009 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 3 of 4 

36.70A.120 states that all capital budget decisions shall be in conformance with the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Growth Management Act under RCW 36.70A.020 contains planning goals that include, but are not 
limited to, 1) Urban Growth, 3) Transportation, 5) Economic Development, and 12) Public Facilities and 
Services.  The proposed text amendment will support adequate public facilities and services by 
implementing and funding public projects.  
 
County-wide Planning Policies provide guidance to coordinated planning with the public and other 
affected jurisdictions.  Policy 8 refers to the Capital Facilities Plan.  The CIP is developed with input 
from various County departments, and ensures that as need and opportunity arises, the county is well 
positioned to apply funds and implement the plan. 

 
Conclusion: The proposal would be consistent with the GMA goals and with County-wide Planning 
Policies.   

 
3. The text amendment complies with or supports the comprehensive plan’s goals and policies, or how 

amendment of the plan’s goals or policies is supported by changing conditions or state or federal 
mandates; and 

 
Finding of Fact:  Public facilities are key to the high quality of life enjoyed by County residents and are 
important in the retention and recruitment of business and industries.  The proposed amendments 
support existing County facilities.   
 
Several policies in the Capital Facilities Elements of the Comprehensive Plan relate to the updated CIP 
table, including: CF 2.3, CF 3.5 and ED 6.5.  Capital facilities plans should consider the anticipated 
growth of service areas to assure that new facilities do not become obsolete due to under-sizing which 
could result in untimely expansion.  Coordination of capital facility planning provides for more efficient, 
and therefore less costly infrastructure improvements. 
 
Conclusion: The proposed amendment would be consistent with and does support the goals and 
policies of the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
4. The amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term commercial 

significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated; and 
 

Finding of Fact:  The proposed amendments are programmatic, relating to a project and funding 
schedule. Site specific development and land use applications are reviewed for consistency with 
adopted regulations at the time of permitting. As required by state law, the text amendment will update 
the CIP’s list of capital projects and expenditures, including the sources of funding.  As such public 
facilities and community projects are planned and developed, they will be evaluated in relation to 
designated critical areas and resource lands. 
   
Conclusion: The text amendment to the Capital Facilities Element does not adversely affect lands 
designated as resource lands of long-term commercial significant or designated critical areas in ways 
that cannot be mitigated. 

 
5. The proposed amendment would serve the interests of not only the applicant, but the public as a whole, 

including health, safety or welfare.  
 

Finding of Fact: The proposed amendments are necessary to fund capital projects, which are intended 
to maintain existing facilities, serve the public and protect the public welfare. The CIP project list will 
also enable the County to meet the demands of growth as such facilities and services are needed. 
 
Conclusion: The text amendment to the Capital Facilities Element would serve the public interest. 

 



   

CPA 20-009 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 4 of 4 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1 .  Chelan County adopted Title 14, Development Permit Procedures and Administration outlining 
provisions relating to the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan consistent with RCW 36.70A. The 
County followed the procedures required for amendment of the Comprehensive Plan. 

2 .  Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and Chelan County 
Code outline provisions relating to the adoption and amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. The 
County used the applicable guidelines and regulatory review criteria for each amendment. 

3 .  RCW 36.70A.210 requires that the Comprehensive Plan be consistent with the provisions of the 
adopted County-Wide Planning Policies. 

4 .  The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act, and WAC 197-11 SEPA Rules 
have been satisfied. The County, as lead agency, completed a SEPA checklist and issued a 
Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) on January 7, 2021. The SEPA Checklist and DNS are 
included within the file of record and adopted by reference.  

5 .  The required State agency review with the Department of Commerce (COM) and other State agencies 
initiated on January 7, 2021, submittal ID #2021-S-2229 (Attachment 1), pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106.   

6 .  A request for a Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment was submitted by Chelan County to consider 
the update of the Six Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for years 2021-2026. The CIP describes 
public capital expenditures, including the sources of funding for these items.  
a. As recommended by staff, the proposed changes are consistent with the Chelan County 

Comprehensive Plan as outlined in this staff report.  
 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1 .  The amendments to the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan are consistent with the requirements of 
the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and County-Wide 
Planning Policies. 

2 .  The amendments are necessary to address a public land use issue or problem. 
3 .  The amendments do not adversely affect designated resource lands of long-term commercial 

significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 
4 .  Reviewing agencies and the general public were given an opportunity to comment on the proposed 

amendments. 
5 .  The amendments are consistent with Chelan County Code Title 14 Development Permit Procedures 

and Administration. 
6 .  The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act and WAC 197-11 SEPA Rules 

have been satisfied. 
7 .  The adoption of these amendments is in the best interest of the public and furthers the health, safety, 

and welfare of the citizens of Chelan County. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The Chelan County Planning Commission may make a motion to recommend approval or denial of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Chelan County Board of County Commissioners, 
pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050.  Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 
which may be modified, are included in this staff report.  Staff recommends: 
 
A. Move to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to update the Six Year Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) for years 2021-2026, given file number CPA 20-009, based upon the findings 
of fact and conclusions of law contained within the January 27, 2021 staff report. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. 60-day Review Acknowledgment Letter from WA Dept. of Commerce 
2. File of Record for CPA 20-009  

 
 



01/07/2021

Ms. Catherine Lorbeer
Assistant Director
Chelan County
316 Washington Street Suite 301
Wenatchee, WA 98801

Sent Via Electronic Mail

Re: Chelan County--2021-S-2229--60-day Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment

Dear Ms. Lorbeer:

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the 60-day 
Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment as required under RCW 36.70A.106.  We received your 
submittal with the following description.

Proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Capital Facilities Element to update the 
Six Year Capital Improvement Plan for years 2021-2026.  This plan describes public 
capital expenditures, including the sources of funding for these items.

We received your submittal on 01/07/2021 and processed it with the Submittal ID 2021-S-2229. 
Please keep this letter as documentation that you have met this procedural requirement.  Your 60
-day notice period ends on 03/08/2021.

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies for comment.

Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment to Commerce within ten days of 
adoption.

If you have any questions, please contact Growth Management Services at 
reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov, or call Scott Kuhta, (509) 795-6884.

Sincerely,

Review Team
Growth Management Services

STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
1011 Plum Street SE � PO Box 42525 � Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 � (360) 725-4000

www.commerce.wa.gov

Page: 1 of 1

Attachment 1
60-day Review

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.106
mailto:%20reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov


File(s) No. CPA 20-009

CHELAN COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

316WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 301, WENATCHEE, WA 98801 
TELEPHONE: (509) 667-6225 FAX: (509) 667-6475 

GENERAL LAND USE APPLICATION FORM 

Parcel Number (APN): Chelan County Lot Size: NA (Acres) 
----------------- ------------

Par c e I Address: NA City/Zip Code: NA 
-----------

Property Owner(s): NA Zoning: NA
--------------

Mai Ii n g Address:._N_A _________________________________ _ 
City/State/Zip Code: _N_A ______________________________ _

Phone: NA E-mail: NA
------------- -----------------------

Applicant/Agent (if different than owner): Cathy Mulhall. County Administrator 
---------------------------

Company and Mailing Address: Chelan County Commissioners, 400 Douglas St. Suite 201 

City/State/Zip: Wenatchee, WA 98801 Phone: 509-667-3216 
-------------

E -ma i I: Cathy.Mulhall@CO.CHELAN.WA.US

For multiple owners, applicants, or agents, provide additional sheets . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

This General Land Use Application Form shall be completed unless specified below. Additional information and 
supplemental forms may be required. Please review all applicable statutes and regulations pertaining to the proposed 
development and provide information, documents, studies, and reports (such as a Traffic Impact Study or 
environmental forms) demonstrating compliance with all statutory and regulatory requirements and other applicable 
criteria. 

Application For: (Check all that apply) §dministrative Modification 
dministrative Determination 
dministrative Interpretation 
inding Site Plan 
omprehensive Plan Map Amendment 
omprehensive Plan Text Amendment 
onditional Use Permit 
orest Practice/Conversion 

APPLICABILITY SECTION 

Open Space: Public Benefit Rating System 
Major Subdivision 
Master Planned Development 
Planned Development 
Plat Alteration or Vacation 
Short Plat 
Variance (zoning or critical areas) 
Zoning Text Amendment/ Map Amendment 
Other: 

The following have their own individual application. Do not use this form for: 
1. Boundary Line Adjustments. Please use corresponding Boundary Line Adjustment Application Form.
2. Certificate of Exemptions. Please use corresponding Certificates of Exemption Application Form.
3. Shoreline Permits. Provide the JARPA form along with the corresponding Supplemental Form, as necessary.
4. Building and Fire Permits.
5. Pre-Applications.

The following attachments are required for a complete application: 

1 . Copy of Deed or Proof of Ownership 
2. Supplemental Forms, if applicable
3. Completed Aquifer Recharge Section, Marijuana Disclosure Section and Site Plan Checklist
4. All information, documents, studies and reports demonstrating compliance with all statutory and regulatory criteria

and requirements and the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan
5. The applicant is required to review and submit documentation showing compliance with all Chelan County Code,

including but not limited to Title 4, Title 11, Title, 12, Title 14, and Title 15.

Revised January 20 18 Applica1ions may be accepted during nonnal office hours Page I of7 

Attachment 2
File of Record















The proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Capital Facilities Element is to update the new Six Year 

Capital improvement Plan for Years 2021-2026.  This plan describes public capital expenditures, including the 

sources of funding for these items.  The goal of the Capital Improvement Plan is to ensure that all capital 

improvement expenses have adequate funding.  The proposed amendments are to address changes in timing 

and cost for projects.  Specifically, moving 2020 projects into future years that were either not completed or 

were determined not to be a priority.  Completed projects have been removed.  Updates to the Cashmere 

Dryden Airport Layout Plan to comply with WSDOT and FAA funding and regulations precipitated changes to the 

CIP as well. 



YEAR 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Reconstruct taxilane 0 0 0 277,778 0 0

Relocate entrance and access gate 166,667 0 0 0 0 0

Design Runway 7/25 project 0 0  277,778 0 0

ALP Update 55,555 0 0 0 0

Environmental Review ALP 0 0 111,110 0 0 0

Obstruction Removal - General 55,555 0 0 0 0 0

Property Acquisition RWY 7 0 0 0 0 200,000
Above-ground fuel system 0 0 0

Total Uses of Funds 222,222 55,555 111,110 555,556 0 200,000

Grant and County Funds 11,110 2,777 5,555 27,778

WSDOT Aviation 11,112 2,778 5,555 27,778

Non-primary entitlement (FAA) 200,000 50,000 100,000 500,000 200,000

Total Sources of Funds 222,222 55,555 111,110 555,556 0 200,000

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Tech Bond Debt Service 66,230 66,967 0 0 0 0

Master Plan Debt Service 224,200 225,100 0 0 0 0

Jail Facilities Debt Service 612,203 613,083 613,395 1,112,995 827,195

Total Uses of Funds 902,633 905,150 613,395 1,112,995 827,195 0

Chelan County General Fund 66,230 66,967 0 0 0 0

Rural Counties Tax Fund 224,200 225,100 0 0 0 0

Criminal Justice Fund 612,203 613,083 613,395 1,112,995 827,195

Total Sources of Funds 902,633 905,150 613,395 1,112,995 827,195 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rural County Tax Fund

County Wide Public Projects 143,984 145,971 147,594 0

Total Uses of Funds 143,984 145,971 147,594 0 0 0

Local Option Tax (LOTS) 143,984 145,971 147,594 0

Total Sources of Funds 143,984 145,971 147,594 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fairgrounds Redevelopment Bonds 91,662 92,682

Building Upgrades 140,000

Carnival Lot Improvements 250,000  

Grounds Improvement/Electric/Asphalt 30,000

RV Park Improvement 35,000

Grandstands/Stage 70,000

Total Uses of Funds 366,662 342,682 0 0 0 0

Rural County Tax Funds 91,662 92,682

Capital Improvement Reet 2 Fund 275,000 250,000

Grants, Loans, Donations 0 0

Total Sources of Funds 366,662 342,682 0 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sources of Funds

2021-2026 CHELAN COUNTY CAPITAL IMRPOVEMENT PLAN     

CASHMERE DRYDEN AIRPORT

COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE

Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

Uses of Funds

Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

COUNTY EXPO CENTER

Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds



YEAR 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

2021-2026 CHELAN COUNTY CAPITAL IMRPOVEMENT PLAN     

    Parking Lot Crack Sealing 70,000

Boilers - 1974 Courthouse 200,000

Campus-wide Access Control 120,000

Detox Safety & Facility Upgrades 100,000 300,000

Remote server/network upgrade-Campus & Off 

Campus 
50,000

Telephone System Upgrade 50,000

HVAC&Control Systems Upgrade (316 bldg) 200,000

Facilities Signage (Courthouse) 20,000

Carpet (Courthouse) 55,000 50,000 50,000

Marble Restoration (Courthouse) 70,000 50,000

Level 5 Remodel (Courthouse) 475,000

Fire Alarm System Update 75,000 50,000

Justice Facilities Improvement (Law & Justice) 420,000 225,000 225,000

Elevator Modernization (Law & Justice) 350,000 275,000

Security Systems Upgrade (Juvenile Detention) 200,000 200,000 200,000

HVAC Upgrade/Replacement (West Annex) 90,000 90,000

ADA Upgrades (West Annex) 150,000 150,000

Commissioner Chamber Remodel 125,000 125,000

Total Uses of Funds 1,995,000 2,140,000 625,000 50,000 0 0

Capital Improvement Reet 1 Fund 1,185,000 1,290,000 625,000 50,000

Criminal Justice Fund 810,000 850,000

Total Sources of Funds 1,995,000 2,140,000 625,000 50,000 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Irrigation Pump Station

Parking Lot Improvements 100,000

Ox Yoke Lodge Renovation 10,000 150,000

Restroom/Event Multi-Purpose Room 20,000  

New Visitor & Interpetive Center Building 600,000  

Lower Lawn Stage 150,000

Total Uses of Funds 870,000 10,000 150,000 0 0 0

Capital Improvement Reet 2 Fund 720,000 10,000 100,000

Rural Counties Tax Fund 0 0

Tourism Grant, Other Grants, Donations

Donations, Grants, Fund Raising 150,000 0 50,000

Total Sources of Funds 870,000 10,000 150,000 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

FACILITIES DEPARTMENT

Uses of Funds

Sources of Funds

Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

OHME GARDENS



YEAR 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

2021-2026 CHELAN COUNTY CAPITAL IMRPOVEMENT PLAN     

Countywide Water Resource Projects

Countywide Parks and Recreation Projects

Total Uses of Funds 0 0 0 0 0

Rural Counties Tax Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Sources of Funds 0 0 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

W Cashmere Bridge Replacement 1,000,000

Totem Pol Road 300,000

Dryden Transfer Station-Second Tip Floor 1,000,000

Vegecide Truck Wash Facility 50,000

Wenatchee District Shop Replacement 125,000 2,500,000 0

Road Rehailitation 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 0

Road District Sheds:  Accessibility, Shop 

Lighting & Electrical Efficiency Upgrades
150,000

Total Uses of Funds 3,025,000 3,500,000 700,000 700,000 0

County Road Fund 1,325,000 2,500,000

Solid Waste Fund 1,000,000

Rural Counties Tax Fund 300,000

Capital Improvement Reet 2 Fund 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000

Total Sources of Funds 3,025,000 3,500,000 700,000 700,000

Variance 0 0 0 0

0

Cell Improvements - Light switches & ADA 37,000

Booking Remodel 25,000

Security Locks 26,400 0

2nd flr railing 40,000 0

Cell Reconfiguration 30,000

Cuff Ports 40,000

SWF Conversion 100,000

EAC Key Cards 500,000 500,000

Total Uses of Funds 298,400 500,000 500,000 0 0

0

Capital Improvement Reet 1 Fund 298,400 500,000 200,000

Criminal Justice Funds 0 300,000

Grants, Loans, Donations 0 0 0

Total Sources of Funds 298,400 500,000 500,000 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Emergency Operations Center 2,200,000

Total Uses of Funds 2,200,000 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Improvement Reet 1 Fund 1,000,000

Grants, Loans, Donations 1,200,000 0 0 0 0 0

Total Sources of Funds 2,200,000 0 0 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0

Park infastructure improvements 30,000 0 0 0 0 0

Total Uses of Funds 30,000 0 0 0 0

Capital Improvement Reet 2 Fund 30,000

Total Sources of Funds 30,000 0 0 0 0

Variance 0 0 0 0 0

Uses of Funds

Sources of Funds

REGIONAL JUSTICE CENTER 

Uses of Funds

PUBLIC WORKS 

Uses of Funds

Sources of Funds

Wenatchee River County Park

Uses of Funds

Sources of Funds

Sources of Funds

Sources of Funds

SHERIFF

Uses of Funds

NATURAL RESOURCES














	January-27-2021-PC-MEMO
	Exhibit A
	January-27-2021-PC-Agenda
	Exhibit B
	December-16-2020-PC-Minutes
	Exhibit C
	CPA 20-009 CIP Text Amendment w attach
	CPA 20-009 Staff Report
	CPA 20-009 ATTACH 1 - 60 day Review
	CPA 20-009 ATTACH 2 - File of Record
	2021-2026 CIP





